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NORBURY Part 2
There is a well-known and widely believed story, derived from reliable sources, including Manning and Bray, that Anthony Chapman who owned Norbury from 1766 - 1774, cut down 40,000 trees, mostly walnuts, and sold them to timber merchants who were anxious to supply the timber trade with this most popular wood.
Upon reflection, one cannot help thinking that this story has been exaggerated a bit.  To cut down 40,000 well grown trees in eight years means 5000 a year, 100 a week or 15 each working day - and all without chain saws and tractors and virtually no roads.
However all that may be, Chapman sold the estate in 1774 to William Lock Esq. of Portman Square London - a wealthy, cultured man and a noted patron of the arts, whose artistic eye saw that this lovely piece of Surrey could be developed into a beautiful home in spite of previous depredations.  The ancient manor house, (now The Priory) had been sadly neglected and was in a ruinous condition - totally unfit for his young wife, Frederica, and their children, so he decided to build a new mansion up on the Norbury heights, from which a breath-taking view could be had of the Mole Valley, Box Hill and the country beyond.
During the building he took his family to Italy and returned to take possession in 1776.  Whilst there he conceived the idea of decorating the entire wall space of the drawing room with a series of landscape paintings.  The work was carried out by an artist whom he had met and befriended in Italy, one George Barrett.  Thus, was created the famous ‘Painted Room’ which has delighted visitors ever since and, indeed, still does.
William Lock is probably the best known of all owners of Norbury because of the friendship he and his wife extended to Fanny Burney.  Last year, 1984, was the bicentenary of Fanny’s first visit to Norbury when, in June 1784, she spent a fortnight with her ‘beloved Freddie’.  Over the ensuing 16 years the place was to play a very prominent part in her ‘Journals and Letters’ - from these we have a clear picture of the domestic felicity which pervaded this lovely home.
William Lock died in 1810 and his eldest son, William, in 1819 decided to sell the estate.  What happened to it subsequently we shall consider in the concluding article.
[bookmark: _GoBack]Before we leave it at this stage however, we might notice certain features of interest shown on contemporary maps.  Until the new mansion was built only one ‘carriage road’ is shown, entering the estate at the northeast and crossing the river by a bridge which is still in use.  Hassell painted it in 1823 and named it ‘Mr Lock’s Bridge’ but earlier it was known as Broad Bridge.  The road passed, as it does today, to the old manor house and left to join the old London Road opposite, at Mickleham;  but then there was no bridge and the river was crossed by a ford,  No doubt there was a footbridge at the site and one which Fanny Burney must have crossed many times as she went to and fro between her sister’s cottage and the ‘Big House’.
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